National Work Readiness Credential 

RFP for an Assessment Delivery Vendor
Answers to Questions

Clarification to Proposal Deadline and Delivery Instructions:

Bidders must deliver eight (8) copies of the technical and cost proposals no later than 5:00 pm Eastern Time on 31 March 2006 to the I Street (rear) entrance to the US Chamber.  The entrance is down a short alley close to the corner of I and Connecticut, marked at the street by a small sign.  To assure delivery to me as soon as possible, please address the package as follows:

RFP for NWRC Test Delivery Partner

ATTN: Sondra Stein

Center for Workforce Preparation, 3-30

US Chamber of Commerce 

1615 H St NW

Washington, DC 20062

Also include my phone number: 463-5619.
Questions about the Assessment Itself
1. Has a report been prepared on results of the field test?  If so, is the report available for review?
The results of the field test are being analyzed right now.  The report will be ready in April, 2006. 

2. Is NWRC able to provide the following documents for review?  [The offeror] will be pleased to sign a non-disclosure agreement.

·   The current Candidate Handbook and the Administration and Scoring Manual

· The oral (OLT) scoring criteria (if it is not included in the scoring manual requested above)

·   Sample items for each assessment component (either in hard copy or computer-based access)
NWRC can make available the Administration Manual from the Field Test and the OLT scoring criteria.  Bidders that are interested in receiving these should contact Sondra Stein at sstein@uschamber.com   There is no need for a non-disclosure agreement, since all participants in the RFP process are already bound to confidentiality as per p.21, RFP. 
3. Will we have an opportunity to see the current assessments or samples prior to submission of the RFP response? 
Yes. A url will be available to enable you to see samples.  Please contact sstein@uschamber.com for access.
4. RFP Page 7, Test Description. QUESTION: Please confirm that the tenth EFF standard, Use Information and Communications Technology, is beyond the scope of this contract and that bidders do not need to estimate for test development, delivery, or scoring associated with this potentially fifth assessment module.
At this time, the 10th Standard is beyond the scope of this contract.  Bidders do not need to estimate for test development, delivery or scoring at this time.

5. Please clarify the statement “3 of 4 tests can be machine-scored automatically” 
The NWRC assessments have been designed to be delivered by computer via the internet.  The tests are programmed to enable scoring of the three multiple choice tests as soon as they are completed. 

6. Page 8 of the RFP states that "Audio voiceovers are available to test takers for the WR-Situational Judgment and WR-Math tests and for the instructions for the WR-Reading test."  Are these voiceovers available to all candidates or are these voiceovers intended for special accommodations (ADA candidates)? 
The voiceovers are available to all candidates.

7. Page 8 indicates "The WR-OLT consists of five sets of three listening and speaking tasks.  Test takers respond orally to each prompt (for up to 1 minute)."  Does this mean that OLT responses may be up to 15 minutes in duration?  We understand that on average, both listening and speaking portions of the OLT may be scored in 12 minutes, but please clarify the number of tasks included on the oral assessment (OLT) and the average duration (minutes) of the full candidate response.
There are five tasks on the OLT.  Each task has 3 items, for a total of 15 items.  Each task follows this model:
Task 1
*


Item 1 (One audio file scored once for listening and once for speaking)
*


Item 2 (One audio file scored once for listening and once for speaking)
*


Item 3 (One audio file scored once for listening and once for speaking)

Examinees have a minute to respond to each item, but we have found that examinees tend to answer in about 30 seconds.  So, for 15 items, you can expect an average of 7.5 minutes of speech total.  Of course, some examinees will take less time and others will take more time.  

The speech samples are scored twice (independently: once for listening and once for speaking), but there is only one speech sample per item.  In other words, examinees do not respond separately for listening and speaking; they respond once and are rated twice. 

8. RFP Page 8, WR-OLT. QUESTION: Are the five sets of listening and speaking tasks and five versions of the test synonymous? 

The five ‘versions’ of the test are sector-specific tests for clerical/office, construction, factory/manufacturing, sales and service.  Each sector-specific test has five tasks with three items, as above.
 

9. Are anchor (or model responses) available for the oral assessment (OLT)?  

There is a sample task built into the instructions of the OLT.   This task does not appear on the test, but is used to acquaint the test taker with the process of giving an answer.  The sample task includes three sample items and three sample responses.
10. Please verify the testing partner's responsibilities regarding the OLT raters.  Does the testing partner recruit, hire, and train the OLT raters, or does the testing partner train and manage raters that are recruited by NWRC?
The testing partner recruits, hires, trains, and manages the OLT raters, and provides quarterly reports on the process as per p.15 RFP.

11. RFP Page 9, Test Scoring & Reporting. QUESTION: Can the rubric be provided to bidders? What percentage of double rating should we assume (e.g., 10%, 20%, etc.)?  
The rubric is available by contacting sstein@uschamber.com   Bidders should assume a 20% double rating percentage.
12. Are all four separate tests equally weighted?
A decision on weighting the tests will be made once the analysis of the field test data is complete.

13. Situational Judgment test requires the recording of two answers – the one that is the best scenario and the one that is the worst scenario. Is this asked as 2 separate questions?
It is asked as one question.  It is scored as two answers. 

14. Individuals must complete all four modules within 30 days who is responsible for tracking this? What are the consequences for non-conformance? 
The delivery partner’s system should track this.  The candidate handbook will make clear that an individual who doesn’t take all four modules within 30 days will have to retake all modules.

15. RFP Page 10, Test Scoring and Reporting. Individuals who do not pass the assessment will receive a ‘diagnostic report’ that identifies skill areas in which they need to improve in order to earn the Credential. QUESTION: What level of specificity does the NWRC want in the diagnostic report? E.g., will it be simply a pass/no pass classification for each of the nine tested EFF standards or will there be additional details?
There will need to be additional details, sufficient for the test taker to identify and remedy areas of weakness before taking the test again.
16. If a test taker is successful and earns a certificate who will this mean something to? In other words, what institution’s signature will go on the final certificate? 
No final decision has been made on how NWRC partners will be recognized on the certificate.    
Questions about Item and Form Development
17. What is the purpose of embedding items that won’t be scored into the assessment and what percentage of the test will fall into this category? 
To collect item statistics on new test items.

18. Page 17 of the RFP states: "The delivery partner will develop a computer interactive tutorial and practice test for the assessment, using items identified by the test developer.  The delivery partner must provide for public access to the preview assessment, at no charge, via the internet."  

a.   How extensive will the preview version be? i.e., will this be a full practice test or a short sample test to give a general overview of test? Are sample items available now for this preview version to be constructed?
b.   Please clarify NWRC's expectations regarding the OLT component.  An "interactive" tutorial infers an audio prompt, recording of the candidate's response, and rater scoring.  
The purpose of the preview test or practice test is to familiarize test takers with the look and feel of all four of the tests. It is intended to be “a short sample test to give a general overview.” It does not need to be scored.  NWRC will have assessment items available for the tutorial/ practice test.

19. Will NWRC be responsible for recruiting (and compensating, if necessary) item writers for future examination forms?
NWRC will be responsible for recruiting item writers.  Bidders should address costs for honoraria and travel, if necessary, for item writers.
20. RFP Page 17, Development of Test Items and New Forms. The delivery partner will develop at least one new form for each test that equates with the existing form. QUESTION:  Does the NWRC have a preferred measurement model you would like us to use?
The bidder should describe the measurement model they propose to use, and its advantages and disadvantages relative to other models.

21. RFP Page 17, Development of Test Items and New Forms.  Some pretested items are available for use for each test. QUESTION: How many pretested items are available for each test by content area and standard/objective? Have they been through all needed content, bias, editorial, and statistical reviews? 
The field test included two forms of the OLT and significantly more items than are needed for one form of the three other tests.  Until the analysis is complete, we won’t know the exact number of items that are available for use.
22. RFP Page 17, Development of Test Items and New Forms. “The delivery partner will develop at least one new form for each test that equates with the existing form.” Page 11 states that the delivery partner must “produce at least two new forms of the test.” QUESTION: Please clarify the number of forms that need to be developed and when the new items will be field tested and become operational. Also, how long will the initial form be used for?
Bidders should address and cost the development of one new form of the test within the first year, drawing on pretested items as much as possible. 
Bidders should also address creation of another new form for each test by the end of the third year of the contract. 
23. RFP Page 17, Development of Test Items and New Forms. Development and validation of new items for Reading, Math, and Situational Judgment tests is required under the contract. QUESTION: Will the OLT test remain unchanged during the 3-5 year contract? If the items change, who will develop the items and have rubrics and training already been developed, or will the vendor be involved with range finding, determining rubrics, and developing training for the new items?  

Since development of the OLT requires specialized expertise possessed by the Center for Applied Linguistics (CAL), the vendor that has developed the OLT, the NWRC itself will contract with CAL for future development.  NWRC will expect the delivery partner to work with CAL and to provide all data on the OLT (as described in the RFP, Data and Reporting Services, p. 14-15) required for CAL to monitor the performance of the OLT and develop new items and forms as necessary. 
Questions about Delivery System
24. Please clarify the following paragraph from page 8 of the RFP:  "The four instruments share a common portal and are linked by a common look and functional design elements (including common graphics, color scheme, navigation bar, help features, etc)."  Does NWRC wish to load the existing assessment instruments into the testing partner's secure test delivery system or is NWRC asking the testing partner to host NWRC's proprietary test delivery software? 
The NWRC requirement is for the delivery partner to provide the hosting solution to deliver the NWRC tests.  Bidders have the option of employing the NWRC-developed testing application on their servers, or of entering the test items (Math, Reading, Situational Judgment, and Oral Language Test) into the bidder’s existing proprietary testing system. The intent is that the participant receives the test as developed and field tested no matter what back-end infrastructure is used on the server-side to deliver the tests. It is not NWRC’s intent to deviate from the existing test paradigm.   
25. RFP Page 11, Overview of Services. The delivery partner will enter the WRC assessments into its own computer-interactive test delivery system, QUESTION: In what form will WRC current assessments and additional items in current item bank be delivered to the new vendor? Will we receive all current statistics, graphics, etc., along with items?  What software format are the items in (e.g., InDesign, Quark, Word) and what format are the graphics in (e.g., Adobe photoshop .eps, PDF, etc.)?
 If the delivery partner chooses to enter the test items into their proprietary testing system, the NWRC will provide the test items as an Access database with supporting JPG and GIF image files. The Access database has a record for each test item with fields for question stem, instructions, responses, correct answer, and graphic file to display.

26. Please clarify the Server Platform Requirement of "DNS for live and dev sites using same primary domain" (page 9).  Our system maintains a parallel online development site so that pages under development are not accessible until they are ready for introduction.  Is this acceptable?
The NWRC intent is to have independent development and live test delivery sites such that programming and testing can be performed in a separate staging area that will not impact the live test delivery. The details of how the two sites are structured are left to the vendor, as long as problems with the development site do not adversely impact the live test environment.

27. RFP Page 12, Test Delivery. QUESTION: How many private sites are currently approved by NWRC? Of these sites, how many are one-stop career centers, employers, and educational institutions? Are the sites all currently located in the partner states and the District of Columbia? How many additional private sites should bidders estimate for each year of the contract?
Since the WRC test is not yet operational there are no private sites currently approved by NWRC.  We expect that most users will elect to identify one or more sites as approved private test delivery sites. Such sites may include the full range of sites identified in the RFP, p.7. 
28. How would a system of “automatic scheduling for assessment” be handled if an individual center or test taker has no electronic connectivity? 
 Since the WRC is an online assessment, every individual testing center must have electronic connectivity.
Questions about Data/Management

29. Page 14 states, "Bidders should describe their capacity to put in place an automated system for creating and updating duplicate records on a secure NWRC server and for performing accuracy checks on the data transmitted."  The offeror proposes to offer NWRC role-based access to a secure web portal from which NWRC and its stakeholders can access real time data on candidate registration and examination performance results.  If a secure web portal solution is provided, duplicate records should not be required.  Does NWRC agree?
NWRC will review all options proposed that meet its need for assuring that NWRC has full access to the database.
30. NWRC requests a "secure web-based registry of successful candidates."  Please clarify what NWRC means by "secure."  Does NWRC wish to provide designated stakeholders with access to their candidates on the registry (secure, role-based access), and has NWRC incorporated into the testing process a confidentiality release for the candidates?
Bidders should ensure that all appropriate confidentiality releases are included with the test to support release of the diagnostic report to designated others as well as access by designated others to a secure web-based registry of successful candidates. 

 
31. On page 15, NWRC requests "estimated classification reliabilities" in the statistical analysis of assessment results.  Please clarify this statistic.

See AERA/APA/NCME (1999), Standards for Educational and Psychological Testing, Standard 2.15.
Business Questions 

32. How many examinees should we estimate will test each year (July-December 2006, January-December 2007, January 2008-December 2008, etc)? Have any states or organizations committed to a minimum number of examinees per year? Can the NWRC commit to any minimum or maximum testing volumes by time period? By providing a minimum testing volume bidders may be able to provide more competitive pricing. 
The NWRC is a new venture, with an extremely large potential market, as described in the RFP.  At this time, there is no way that we can realistically estimate volume in either the first year or out years. The five states and the District of Columbia that have invested public resources to develop the WRC have committed to using the assessment in their workforce development systems.  Junior Achievement (now doing business as JA Worldwide) is also a development partner and has committed to using the assessment in its sites across the U.S. 
Other states, cities, and regional Workforce Boards have participated in the field test ( KY, NH, and TX) and intend to use the WRC once it is operational.  In addition to these commitments there are a number of national organizations that have expressed strong interest in becoming partners in the credential, a number of major corporations that are interested in piloting the credential (including corporations based in partner states), at least five other states that have expressed strong interest in using the credential, and regional workforce boards (WIBS) in many states, including, CA, CO, CT, ID, KS, MA, ME, MO, OH, OR, PA, TN, and VT that are looking forward to using the WRC. 
33. What groups are committed (have signed contracts) to using these services after the May deadline? 
Because development of the credential is just being completed, no contracts for use of the WRC have been prepared or signed at this point.

34. What sort of numbers of assessments would be required to provide “volume breaks”? 
  We look to the bidders to propose volume breaks based on their experience. 

35. Who would be paying the cost of the wallet card and certificate? The candidate, the test site, or is this to be built into the overall cost? 
Costs for the certificate and wallet card should be identified in the overall cost.

36. Is there an option for revenue sharing regarding new questions and alternate tests which would be developed? 
Yes.

.

37. What sort of interaction do you envision regarding the plans for growing the system? 
A close partnership between the NWRC and the assessment delivery partner.

38. Are all up-front costs to be assumed by the successful bidder?
Yes.
39. RFP Page 16, Fees and Collection. The RFP indicates that fixed costs for the start-up year are estimated at $750,000-$1,000,000. QUESTION: How were these costs estimated? What is included in this amount? Is this money that the NWRC would provide to the delivery partner? Is the start-up year May 10, 2006-December 31, 2006? 

This estimate is for those operational costs for the NWRC that are outside the scope of this RFP. Costs that arise from this RFP for assessment delivery and related services are over and above the costs identified. This cost estimate is provided to give bidders useful information to consider in developing proposals for user fees and cost sharing with NWRC.  It assumes a start-up year for the NWRC of July 1, 2006 – June 30, 2007.  
Legal Questions

40. RFP Page 19, Sample Contract. QUESTION: Can NWRC provide a sample contract containing the projected standard terms that will be in the resulting contract, thus allowing vendors to review these terms, prior to submitting a proposal and prior to receiving the awarded contract?
A sample contract will be available.  Please request from sstein@uschamber.com
41. Although there is no provision in the RFP for delays in performance as a result of a force majeure event (events beyond the contractor’s reasonable control including without limitation, acts of God; acts or omissions of governmental authorities or the other party or any third party; strikes, lockouts or other industrial disturbances; acts of public enemies; wars; blockades; riots; civil disturbances; epidemics; floods; hurricanes; tornadoes; and any other similar acts, events, or omissions), does the NWRC acknowledge that such delays in performance would not constitute a breach of the contract? 
The contract will include provisions that allow for delays in performance as result of a force majeur event.
Other Questions

42. A very aggressive timeline has been established which will likely necessitate sub contracted partners. Does CWP have any problem with this approach? 
No problem.
43. We will probably be suggesting an alternative timeline, will this negate our response? 
The NWRC is committed to having the WRC operational at as early a date as possible.
44. Is there an option for bidding on only a portion of the RFP?    No.
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